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TOURISM TRAINING INSTITUTE

FRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORT
NT

AR ENDED JUNE 30 2023

Management has pleasure of presenting their report on the affairs of Guenet Hotel together with the
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023, to the shareholders of Guenet Hotel. This report
discloses the financial performance and state of affairs of the Company.

Incorporation and address
Guenet Hotel. whach was previously under Ras Hotels Enterprise a business undertaking company
tranasferd to Catering & Tourism Training Institute as of Julyl,1998 as a going concern a per lettere
dated Hidar 29, 1990 form the federal demorcratic Republic of Ethiopia.office of the Prime Minister,
Principal activities
The Company is principally engaged in:

I Tourism and hospitality Industry.

2 Training & education service

3 Wedding Service,

4 And take a part in other endeavors that would enhance Company’s business objectives

Operating results

The Company's results for the year ended 30 June 2023 are set out on page 8. The profit for the vear has
been transferred to retained earnings. The summarized results are presented below.,

30 June 2023 30 June 2022

ETB ETB
Revenue 37.208.310 23.448.541
Profit before income tax (3,966.042) (6,088,544)
Income tax exnense 1.764 099 2.551415
Total comprehensive income for the year (2,201,943) (3,537,128)

Management

The management who held office during the year and to the date

ort are set out on page 3.
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Ato TilakamZewd— W/ro: Etsegenet Teshome
General Manager Finance and Administration Manager

Addis Ababa. Ethiopia




Ut FRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORT

TENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Commercial Code of Ethiopia 2013 requires the Management to prepare financial statements that
represent the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and the operating results of
the Company for that year. The Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960 also requires the Management to
ensure that the Company keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company. The Management is also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company.

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the statement of financial position of the Company at the reporting date and of
its comprehensive income in the manner required by the Commercial Code of Ethiopia of 1960, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The responsibilities
include;

Designing. implementing and maintaining such internal control as they determine necessary to enable
the presentation of [inancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to error
or fraud:

a)

) selecting suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates,
that are consistently applied: and

¢) keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the
Company.

The Management further accepts responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be
relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial

The Management is of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
financial affairs of the Company and of its profit or loss.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Management to indicate that the Company will not remain a
going concern for at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

Signed on behalf of the Management by:

A

"W W/ro: Etsegenet Teshome
General Manager Finance and Administration Manager
514 y I g 3 .\.‘.\.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

CATERING AND TOURISM TRAINING INSTITUTE
GUENET HOTEL

1. UNQUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Catering and Tourism Training Institute Guenet Hotel

which comprise the statement of the financial position as at 30 June 2023, Statement of comprehensive income,
Statement of changes in equity, Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all materials respects, the financial position
of the Company as at 30 June, 203 its financial performance and cash flows for the year ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

(IASB).

2. BASIS OF UNQUALIFIED OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under

those standards are further described in the auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statement
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the international Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ code of Ethics for Professional Accounts (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Ethiopia, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

3. KEY AUDUIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgments, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.




The Company has been in IFRS conversation process as a first time adopter. As a result, various new accounting
policies have been selected and implemented. The comparative figures as well as opening balances of the previous
year were reinstated based on the accounting policy selected. Proper selection and application of the new accounting
policies starting from the date of transition i.e 30 June 2021 have been considered as key audit matters for our audit
during the year. As a result our audit covered verification of the conversation process with effect from 30 June 2021

and consistency of the accounting policy.

4. RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a

Company report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, decision, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

5. AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

AT e nke-

Habtewold Menkir
Chartered Certified Accountants (UK)
Authorized Auditors (ETH) P
Addis Ababa

27 October, 2023




Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Operating Expenses

General and administrative expenses

I'inance income (cost). net

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit after tax for the year

Other comprehensive income. net of income tax:

obligations

Deferred tax (liability)/asset on Remeasurement gain or loss =

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 8 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Notes ETB ETB

5 37.208.310 23.448.541
6 (13,261,806) (9,239,711)
23,946,504 14.208.830
7 3,934,815 3,453,937
27.881.319 17,662,767
9 (31.847.360) (23.751.311)
8 = .
(31.847.360) (23,751.311)
(3.966,042) (6,088,544)
10.1 1,764,099 2,551,415
(2.201,943) (3,537,128)
(2,201,943) (3,537,128)




ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

Property. Plant and Equipment
Investement Property

Right of Use land

Bond - Instrument

Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade Receivables

Other Receivables
Cash and Bank Balances

Total Current Assets

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Lquity

Paid Up Capital

Retained Earnings

Deemed Cost In excess of carrying value

Legal Reserve

Total Equity
Non-Current Liability

Provsion for fence Construction
Retirement Benefit Obligation
Deferred Tax Liability

Total Non-Current Liability

Current Liabilities

Trade Payables
Other Liabilities
Current Income Tax Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liability

Total Equity and Liabilities

Notes

13
14
15
16

17
18

20

22

10.4

The notes on pages 8 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.

JUNE 30, 2023 2022 2021

ETB ETB ETB
138,770,371 144,091,606 148,961,683
5,557,205 5,876,306 6,195,408
1.304,774,673 | 1.304.774.673|| 1.304.774,673
1,000.000 1,000,000 1,000,000
1,450,102,249 | 1,455,742,585|| 1,460,931,764
1,158,298 1,200,602 674,813
51,795 995,173 1,614,792
194,213 108,249 1,151,460
32,985,743 38,725,626 38,144,399
34,390,048 41,029,651 41,585,464
1,484,492,297 | 1,496,772,236(( 1,502,517,228
1,177,283 1,177,283 1,177,283
26,813,727 41,544,003 45.079.218
1.407,895,221 | 1.407.895.221(| 1,407.,895,221
1,435,886,231 | 1,450,616,507|| 1,454,151,722
850,703 1,041,164 1.041.164
2,878,517 2,057,924 2,026,590
37.078,619 40,617,042 43,572,788
40,807,840 43,716,131 46,640,542
958.682 635,767 854,648
5,140,233 1,410,245 870,315
1,699.310 393,588 =
7,798,226 2,439,599 1,724,963
48,606,066 46,155,730 48,365,505
1,484,492,298 | 1,496,772,236(| 1,502,517,227

The financial statements on pages 8 to 27 were approved and authorized for issue by the Company management on

27 August 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

Ato Tilahun Zewdu
General Manager

ik W/ro: Etsegenet Teshome

£ ¢ "i'?ina\nce and Administration Manager




As at 31 JULY 2021

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

LULAL CUIIPreneiive ijneome r ur
The Year

Transfer to Legal Reserve

Dividend Paid
rollover adj

As at 30 JUNE 2022

Asat 1 JULY 2022

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Income For
The Year

Payment to ERCA

Prior year adjustment

As at 31 JULY 2023

Reserve for
excess deemed

Paid up Retained cost over
capital earnings  carrying value Total
Notes ETB ETB ETB ETB
1,177,283 45,079,218 1,407,895,221 1,454,151,722
18 - (3.537.128) - (3,537,128)
- (3,537,128) - (3.537.128)
1,177,283 41,544,003 1,407,895,221 1,450,616,507
1,177,283 41,544,003 1,407,895,221 1,450,616,507
18 (2,201,943) - (2,201,943)
- (2.201,943) - (2,201,943)
(11,693.850) (11,693.856)
(834.478) (834.478)
- (12.528.333) - (12,528.333)
1,177,283 26,813,727 1,407,895,221 1,435,886,231

The notes on pages 8 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash generated from operations

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Acquisition of investment security
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
cash payment for construction in progress
Proceeds from sales of PPE

Net cash generated from (used in) investing activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
[Loans/advances

Bankoverdraft

Bank laons

Refunds/settlements

Additional Investment

Settlement of Lease Obligation

Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalent is composed of:

Cash on hand

Cash at bank

The notes on pages 8 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

26

10.1

18
17
21

16

2023 2022
ETB ETB
11.409.976 4,679,728
(12,162,458) (10,742)
(752,482) 4,668,986
(4,767.741) (6,750.399)
63.400
(4,704,341) | (6,750,399)
(283,061) 2.716.566
(283,061) 2,716,566
(5,739,884) 635,153
38.725.626 38.144.399
32,985,742 38,779,552
Q
56,841 53.926
32.928.902 38,725,626
32,985,743 38,779,552
/ 2
N
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General information

Guenet Hotel, whach was previously under Ras Hotels Enterprise a business undertaking company tranasferd to Catering &
Tourism Training Institute as of July1.1998 as a going concern a per lettere dated Hidar 29, 1990 form the federal demorcratic
Republic of Ethiopia.office of the Prime Minister, Economic Alfairs Section.

Company's business objective as stipulated in the Memorandum of Association includes the following activities:
I To engage in tourism and hospitality Industry,

2 Training & education service

3 Wedding Service

4 To engage in service delivery,
COMPANY LOCATION
At present, the company’s head office is located in Addis Ababa City Administration,Kirkos Sub City, Woreda 11, House
NO.XNX.
Summary of significant accounting policies
Introduction to summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements for the vear ended JUNE 30,2023 have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"). Additional information
required by national regulations are included where appropriate.

The financial statements comprise the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of financial
position, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the financial statements.

The financial statements for the year ended JUNE 30,2023 are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Refer to note 32 for information on how the Company adopted IFRS.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle under the historical cost concept.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Changes in
assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions changed. The management
believes that the underlying assumplions are appropriate and that the Company's financial statements therefore present the
financial position and results fairly.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.

Going concern

The linancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, The Management has no doubt that the Company would
remain in existence for the next 12 months.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New Standards, amendments, interpretations issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after

JUNE 302023, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the linancial statements of the Company, except the following set out below:

12



ETHOTEL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

(3]

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

[
(3]
1]

New Standards, amendments, interpretations issued and adopted early (continued)

Management anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted early as possible or after the effective date of the
pronouncement. New Standards, amendments and Interpretations either adopted or listed below have been disclosed as they are
expected 1o have a material impact on the Company’s financial statement.

New and Amendments to standards Effective for annual periods
IFRS 16 Leases (carly adopted) I January 2019
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: 1 January 2019

Amendments o IAS 23 Borrowing Costs; 1 January 2019
Amendments to TAS 28 - Long-term 1 January 2019

IFRS 16 Leases

This standard was issued in January 2016 (Effective on after | January 2019) . It sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement. presentation and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant
information in a manner that faithfully represents those transactions. The standard introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee (o recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments, The entity is assess the expected impact of this
standard and implemented in this accounting period before the effective date at 31 December, 2018 as permitted by [FRS 16
{the entity applied the modified retrospective approach to existing operating leases which are capitalized under the new standard
with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings with no restatement of comparative information in the financial statements. For existing finance leases, the carrying
amounts before transition represented the 31 December, 2018 values assigned to the right of use asset and lease liability.

Company as lessee:

«  Lessees are required to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except short term leases or Jeases
where the underlying asset has a low value, which are expensed on a straight line or other systematic basis.

«  The cost of the right-of-use asset includes, where appropriate, the initial amount of the lease liability; lease payments
made prior to commencement of the lease less incentives received; initial direct costs of the lessee; and an estimate for
any provision for dismantling, restoration and removal related to the underlying asset.

« The lease liability takes into consideration, where appropriate, fixed and variable lease payments; residual value
cuarantees to be made by the lessee; exercise price of purchase options: and payments of penalties for terminating the

leasc.

«  The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured on the cost model at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. However, right-of-use assets are measured at fair
value when they meet the definition of investment property and all other investment property is accounted for on the
fair value model. If a right-of-use asset relates to a class of property, plant and equipment which is measured on the
revaluation model. then that right-of-use asset may be measured on the revaluation model.

« The lease liability is subsequently increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and re-measured for reassessments
or modifications.

+ Re-measurements of lease liabilities are affected against right-of-use assets, unless the assets have been reduced to nil,
in which case further adjustments are recognized in profit or loss,

«  The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised payments at a revised rate when there is a change in the lease
term or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

«  The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised lease payments at the original discount rate when there is a
change in the amounts expected to be paid in a residual value guaranice or when there is a change in future payments
because of a change in index or rate used to determine those payments.

+  Certain lease moditications are accounted for as separate leases. When lease modifications which decrease the scope of
the lease are not required to be accounted for as separate leases, then the lessee re-measures the lease liability by
he lease. Any gain
or loss relating to the full or partial termination of the lease is recognized in profit or loss—for all other-lease
moditications which are not required to be accounted for as separate leases, the lessee re-measures t eklc‘asg‘: ’li'zabi!ity by\\
. ¢ ¢ LA g P

making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset. S ol
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNLE 2023
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
New Standards. amendments, interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

+ Right-of-use assets and lease liabilitics should be presented separately from other assets and liabilities. If not, then the
line item in which they are included must be disclosed. This

+ Does not apply to right-of-use assets meeting the definition of investment property which must be presented within
mvestment property. IFRS 16 contains different disclosure requirements compared to IAS 17 leases.

Company as lessor:

* Accounting for leases by lessors remains similar to the provisions of IAS 17 in that leases are classified as either finance
leases or operating leases. Lease classification is reassessed only if there has been a modification.

+ A modification is required to be accounted for as a separate lease if it both increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and the increase in consideration is commensurate to the stand alone
price ol the increase in scope.

+ Ifa finance lease is modified. and the modification would not qualify as a separate lease, but the lease would have been
an operating lease if' the modification was in effect from inception, then the modification is accounted for as a separate
lease. In addition. the carrving amount of the underlying asset shall be measured as the net investment in the lease
immediately before the effective date of the modification. IFRS 9 is applied to all other modifications not required to be
treated as a separate lease.

+ Modifications to operating leases are required to be accounted for as new leases from the effective date of the
modification. Changes have also been made to the disclosure requirements of leases in the lessor's financial statements,

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Annual Improvements to IFRS 2015 - 2017 cycle

The amendment specifies that the income tax consequences on dividends are recognized in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized the events or transactions which generated the distributable
reserves

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after | January 2019 and the impact of this amendment is
currently being assessed.

Amendments to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs: Annual Improvements to IFRS 2015 - 2017 cycle

The amendment specifies that when determining the weighted average borrowing rate for purposes of capitalizing borrowing
costs. the caleulation excludes borrowings which have been made specifically for the purposes of obtaining a qualifying asset,
but only until substantially all the activities necessary 1o prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

The elfective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after | January 2019 and the impact of this amendment is
currently being assessed.

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in IAS 12 when there is uncertainty
over income tax treatments. Specifically, if it is probable that the tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax treatment, then all
tax refated items are measured according to the planned tax treatment. If it is not probable that the tax authorities will accept the
uncertain tax treatment, then the tax related items are measured on the basis of probabilities to reflect the uncertainty. Changes
in facts and circumstances are required Lo be treated as changes in estimates and applied prospectively.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and the impact of this amendment is
currently being assessed.
Amendments to IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Venture

The amendment clarifies that IFRS 9, including its impairment requirements, applies to long-term interests. Furthermore, in
applying IFRS 9 to long-term interests, an entity does not take into account adjustments to their carrying amount required by
IAS 28 (i.c.. adjustments to the carrying amount of long-term interests arising from the allocation of losses of the investee or
assessment of impairment in accordance with 1AS 28).

14




NCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
Amendments to TAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Venture (Continued)

The amendments apply retrospectively to annual re porting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 Earlier application is
PpIy I ) gp g £ :

permitted. Specific transition provisions apply depending on whether the first- time application of the amendments coincides

with that of IFRS 9.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company: operates ('the functional currency’). The functional curreney and presentation currency of the Company is the
Ethiopian Birr (ETR).

Transactions and halances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the
translation at exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Company's functional
currency are recognized in profit or loss within other (loss)/income. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated using the closing rate as at the reporting date.

Changes in the fair value of monetary sceurities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analyzed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortized cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount ol the security. Translation differences related to changes in amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss, and other
changes in carrving amount are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets

Property, plant and equipment

Deemed Cost

The Company has elected to measure its items of property., plant and equipment at the date of transition to IFRSs at their
Revalued amount and use the Revalued amount as deemed cost at that date. Accordingly, the Company has measured the
revalued amount of its property, plant and equipment by establishing capable in-house valuators and the reconstructed historical
cost was taken as deemed cost in the preparation of the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018.

Property. plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses if any.
Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of property. plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate assct, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

Depreciation is caleulated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives. as follows:

Asset class
Estimated economic Life

Building 50
Motor vehicles and Machinery 12
Office furniture and equipment 10
Computer and accessories 10
Office equipment 10
Plant and Machinery 15
Garage Tools 12

The Company commences depreciation when the asset is available for use. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Anitem ol property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future cconomic benefits are expected from its use disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statem tof profit or
loss when the assel is derecognized. il J
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Properties in the course of construction are carried as work in progress at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees. Such properties are reclassified to the appropriate categories of asset when completed and ready for

intended use.

Impairment of non-linancial assets

The Company assesses. at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists. or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent markel transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for
cach of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally
cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at cach reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the
assel’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined. net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognized when it is
extinguished. discharged. cancelled or expires.

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Classilication and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are measured at the transaction
price i accordance with [FRS 15, all financial assets are initially measured at [air value adjusted for transaction costs (where
applicable).

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories:
+amortized cost
«  fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
«  fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

In the periods presented the Company does not have any financial assets categorized as FVOCI.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets (continued)

The classification is determined by both:
«  the entity’s business model for managing the financial asset

+  the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

All income and expenses relating 1o fieancial assets that are recognized in profit or loss are presented within finance costs,
finance income or other financial items. except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented within other expenses.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are measured al amortized cost il the assets meet the following conditions (and are not designated as FVTPL):

« they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual cash
fTows

+  the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding

Alter initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Discounting is omitted where
the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into this
category of financial instruments as well as listed bonds that were previously classified as held-to-maturity under [AS 39.

Financial assets at fuir value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than “hold to collect’ or ‘hold to collect and sell” are
categorized at fair value through profit and loss. Further, irrespective of business model financial assets whose contractual cash
flows are not solely pavments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL. All derivative financial instruments fall into
this category. except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge accounting requirements
apply (see below).

The category also contains an equity investment. The Company accounts for the investment at FVTPL and did not make the
irrevocable clection to account for the any equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The
fair value was determined in line with the requirements of [FRS 9. which does not allow for measurement at cost.

Assets in this category are measured al fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of financial
assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active

marker exisis
The Company accounts for inancial assets at FVOCT if the assets meet the following conditions:

«  they are held under a business model whose objective it is “hold to collect”™ the associated cash flows and sell and

+  the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Any gains or losses recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) will be recycled upon derecognition of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 975 impairment requirements use more forward-looking information to recognize expected credit losses — the “expected
credit loss (ECL) model’. This replaced 1AS 39°s “incurred loss model”. Instruments within the scope of the new requirements
included loans and other debt-type financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVOCI, trade receivables, contract assets
recognized and measured under [FRS 15 and loan commitments and some financial guarantee contracts (for the issuer) that are
not measured at fair value through profitor loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Recognition of eredit losses is no longer dependent on the Company first identifying a credit loss event. Instead the Company
considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses, including past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the
inctriment
In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made between:
« linancial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or that have low
credit risk (“Stage 17) and
= financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition and whose credit risk
is not low (*Stage 27).

Iimpairment of financial assets
“Stage 37 would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month expected credit losses™ are recognized for the first category while ‘lifetime expected credit losses™ are recognized for

the second category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected
life of the financial instrument.

Trade and other receivables and contract assets

The Company makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade and other receivables as well as contract assets and
records the loss allowance as lifetime expected credit losses. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows,
considering the potential for default at any point during the life of the financial instrument. In calculating, the Company uses its
historical experience. external indicators and forward-looking information to calculate the expected credit losses using a
Drovision matrix.

The Company assess impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risk characteristics they
have been grouped based on the days past due. Refer to Note 4.4 for a detailed analysis of how the impairment requirements of
IFRS 9 are applied.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments.

Financial habilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the
Company designated a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method except for derivatives and
financial Habilities designated at FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit
or loss (other than derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedging instruments).

All interest-related charges and. i applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or loss are
included within finance costs or linance income.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilitics are derccognized when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished.

Offsetting linancial instruments

Financial asscts and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position where The Company
has a legally enforceable right to olfset the recognized amounts, and there is an intention Lo settle on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the lability simultancously. The legal enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable i the normal course of business and in event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the
counterparty.
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Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (Continued) .
Other assets

Prepayments

Prepayments are payments made in advance for services to be enjoyed in future. The amount is initially capitalized in the
reporting period in which the payment is made and subsequently amortized over the period in which the service is 10 be

enjoyed.
Other receivables

Other receivables are recognized upon the occurrence of event or transaction as they arise and cancelled when payment is
received. The Company's other receivables are staff advances and other receivables from debtors.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months™ maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash
in hand. deposits held at call with Banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings as current liabilities in the statement of financial
position,

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on consideration specified in a contract with_a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. The entity recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer. Revenue is
presented net of value added tax (VAT), rebates and discounts and after eliminating intragroup sales.

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which company expects to be entitled for performing its
services for a customer. Income is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognizes income when it has fulfilled its obligation and the right to
receive the related sum as assured.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in the ordinary course of the company’s activities.
Income is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the company and
the amount of income, and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably.

The entity revenues are earned mainly from the following services:
Tourism and hospitality,

Car rental business,

wedding car rental and event organization,

Air transport ticket sales and Delivery Services

Revenue from provision of services is recognized when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
«  The company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods services;
«  The company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the dc;;,rec Ltsua[[y associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold service provided: < :
*  The amount of revenue can be measured reliably:
« Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and
«  The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Investment income

Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the EIR method. Fees and
commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial asset are recognized as an adjustment to the EIR of
the instrument.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income

This is recognized when the Company’s right 1o receive the payment is established, which is generally when the shareholders
approve and declare the dividend.

Other instances of revenue are recognized when the underlying quid pro quo requirements have been fairly met and the right to
receive the related sum is assured.

Emplovee benefits

The Company's only post-employment schemes is defined contribution pension plans.

Wuages, salaries and annual leave
e ———

Wages, salaries, bonuses, other contributions, paid annual leave and sick leave are accrued in the year ln)MHﬂa thgeassodiat@l 4 .
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2.13

Summary of significant accounting puliﬁes (i‘ontimlcd)
Employee benefits (continued)

Defined contribution plan
The Company operates one defined contribution plan;

Pension scheme in line with the provisions of Ethiopian pension of private organization employees proclamation 715/2011.
Funding under the scheme is 7% and 11% by employees and the Company respectively;

Onge the contributions have been paid. the Company retains no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if
the Fund does not hold enough assets to finance benefits accruing under the retirement benefit plan. The Company’s obligations
are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments classified as available-for-sale at fair value at each statement of financial position
date. Fair value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value or where
fair values are disclosed are, summarized in the following notes:

+ Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions note 4.6.1.
+ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy note 4.6.2.
« Fmancial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) note 4.6.2.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the Lability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

« In the absence ol a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the

assel or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hicrarchy. described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:
« Level | —  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
« level 2 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

directly or indirectly observable.

+ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have oceurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material. provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate. the risks specific to the hability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time

Paid Up capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options or to the acquisition ol a business are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. The excess of the issue price over the par value is recorded in the share

PI'L‘I'I'IiliI'I'I reserve,

L TL2AN

AP
ony,,

Tl




GUEN
NOTE

FOR'T

2.15

2.16

(b)

I'HOTEL
'O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Deemed Cost

In Transition to IFRS. the excess of deemed cost (fair value) over the carrying value of properties plant and equipment and ROU
Assets is credited either to retained carnings or another form of equity, as appropriate. One of the conditions when such
difference is credited to another form of equity is when there is a regulatory restriction of its distribution to shareholders. The
Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960 stipulates that dividend can be distributed only from reserves in the approved balance sheet
resulting from profit after taxation. Therefore, the increase of the fair value over the carrying va'ue of such long-term assets at
date of transition to IFRS does not qualify to be credited to retained earnings, hence has been credited to a non-distributable
reserve under the heading™ Reserve for Excess deemed cost over carrying value”. Management believes that as the assets are
used by the Company with the passage of time the surplus will crystalize/ will be carned. Therefore, the surplus would be

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or
whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Company as a lessee

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items
are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Contingent rental payable is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Company as a lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all of the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income is recorded as earned based on the contractual terms of the lease in Other operating income.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they

Income taxation

Current income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for cach jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in Fthiopia. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which annlicable tax reaulation is subicel 1o internretation. It establishes nrovisions where annrooriate on the basis of amounts

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill: deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Delerred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary ditferences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
cither the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are only offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and where there is both the
legal right and the intention to settle on a net basis or Lo realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the Management to make judgments. estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as
well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure Lo risks and uncertainties includes:
= Capital management note 4.5,
+ Financial risk management and policies note 4.2

3.1 Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, Management has made the following judgments, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

3.2 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances bevond the control of the Comnanv, Such chanees are reflected in the assumntions when thev occur.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques using inputs from
unobservable sources, A degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs
such as liguidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value

Income taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect Lo the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing
of future taxable income. Given the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising
between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future
adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as
experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax
authority

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized, Significant judgment by the Directors is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax asscts that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
Iair value estimation (Judgment)

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.
The fair value of linancial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the company for similar financial instruments.

Impairment testing (Estimate)

The company reviews and Lests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. When such indicators exist, management delermine the recoverable amount by performing
value in use and fair value calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. When it is not possible
to determine the recoverable amount for an individual asset, management assesses the recoverable amount for the cash

 commitments (Estimate)

Finance lea

The company has entered into land lease arrangement with Ethiopian Airport enterprise for the use and construction of open
space warchouse . Management has determined, based on all available information, that the Company does retain the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the land and. consequently, the land lease has been accounted for as operating lease.




4.1
4.1.1

4.2

Financial risk management
Introduction

Risk measurement and reporting systems

The Company’s risks are measured using methods that reflect both the expected loss likely to arise in normal circumstances and unexpected losses,
which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical model. The models make use of probabilities derived from historical experience,
adjusted to reflect the economic environment.

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Company. These limits reflect the business strategy and
market environment of the Company as well as the level of risk that the Company is willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected regions. In
addition. the Company measures and monitor the overall risk bearing capacity in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and
activities.

Risk mitigation

The Company uses various risk mitigating techniques to reduce its risk to the level acceptable. Risk controls and mitigations, identified and approved
for the Company, are documented for existing and new processes and systems.

The adequacy of these mitigations is tested on a periodic basis through administration of control self-assessment questionnaires, using an operational
risk management tool which requires risk owners to confirm the effectiveness of established controls. These are subsequently reviewed as part of the
review process.

Financial risk

Financial instruments by category

The Company's financial assets are classified into the following categories: at amortized cost, at fair value through P&L and at FV through OCI and the
financial liabilities are classified into other liabilities at amortized cost.

Financial instruments are classified in the statement of financial position in accordance with their legal form and substance.

The Company's classification of its financial assets is summarized in the table below:

o At fair value
through profit At amortized
07 July 2019 Notes or loss cost Total
ETB ETB ETB
Cash and balances with banks 16 - 32,985,743 32,985.743
Trade reccivables 14 - 51,795 51,795
Other receivables excluding prepayments 15 - 194,213 194213
Total financial assets - 33,231,751 33,231,751
07 July 2018
Cash and balances with banks 16 - 38,725,626 38,725,626
Trade receivables 14 - 995,173 995,173
Other receivables excluding prepayments 15 - 108,249 108.249
Total financial assets - 39,829,049 39,829,049
8 July 2017
Cash and balances with banks 16 - 38,144,399 38,144,399
Trade receivables 14 - 1,614,792 1,614,792
Other receivables excluding prepayments 15 - 1,151,300 1,151,300
- 40,910,491 40,910,491

Total financial assets
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Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk

The Company has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. Key areas where the
Company is exposed to credit risk is trade receivables.

Management of credit risk

The Company manages the levels of credit risk it accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a single counterparty, or Companies of counterparty and to
geographical and industry scgments. Such risks are subject to regular review. Limits on the level of credit risk by category and territory are approved
executive management.

The table below show the maximum exposure to credit risk for the Company's financial assets, The maximum exposure is show gross before the effect

of mitigation:
JUNE 30,2023 JUNE 30,2022 JUNE 30,2021

| ETB ETB ETB

Cash and balances with banks 32,985,743 38,725,626 38,144,399
Trade receivables 51,795 995,173 1,614,792
Other receivables excluding prepayments 194,213 108,249 1,151,300
33,231,751 39,829,049 40,910,491

Credit risk
Credit quality analysis
Credit quality of cash and cash equivalents

The credit quality of cash and bank balances and short-term investments that were neither past due nor impaired at as JUNE 30,2023,JUNE 30,2022
and JUNE 30.2021 and are held in banks have been classified as non-rated as there are no credit rating agencies in Ethiopia.

Credit quality of Trade and other receivables
1rade receivanies

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified model of recognizing lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables as these items do not have a
significant financing component. In measuring the expected credit losses, the trade receivables have been assessed on a collective basis as they possess
shared credit risk characteristics, They have been grouped based on the days past due and also according to the geographical location and nature of

cnetiimare

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profile for sales over the past 48 months before JUNE 30,2023 and JUNE 30,2022 respectively as
well as the corresponding historical credit losses during that period. The historical rates are adjusted to reflect current and forwarding looking
macroeconomic factors afTecting the customer’s ability to settle the amount outstanding. The Company has identified gross domestic product (GDP)
and unemplovment rates of the countries in which the customers are domiciled to be the most relevant factors and according adjusts historical loss rates
for expected changes in these factors. However, given the short period exposed to credit risk, the impact of these macroeconomic factors has not been
The range of the classifcation for past due is based on the historical credit loss rate expriance and mangmenent observation, judgment and belive is put
in to account. The mangment consdered the contractual engagment with the customers as well as customers current economic condtion and business
involvememtn is given a top consderation. On the above basis the expected credit loss for trade receivables as well as related party recervables together
as at JUNE 30,2023 and December 2019 was determined as follows:

31-Dee-20 0-90 days >90 days > 180 days > 360 days > 730 days > 6 vear Total
Expected credit loss rate 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 100%
Gross carrving amount (ETB) *
Lifetime expected credit loss (ETB) 2 = * b s =
31-Dec-19
Expected credit loss rate 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 100%
Gross carryving amount (ETB)
Lifetime expected credit loss (ETB) - I e 3 =
31-Dec-18
Expected credit loss rate 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 100%

Gross carrying amount (ETB) 7 =

Lifetime expected credit loss (ETB) - = =
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4 Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Credit risk (continued)
4.4.2 Credit quality analysis(continued)

(b)  Credit quality of Trade and other receivables (continued)
(1) 1rade recervables (contunued)

The closing balances of the of the trade receivables loss allowance as at 7 July 2019, 7 July 2018 and 7 July 2017 reconciles with the trade receivables

loss allowance opening balance as follows:

_I'rade receivables

Loss allowance as at JUNE 30,2021 calculated under previous framework
IFRS 9 transition adjustments

Opening loss allowance at JUNE 30,2021

Loss allowance recognized during the year

s allowance as at JUNE 30,2022

s allowance recognized during the year

Loss allowance as at JUNE 30,2023

(i) Allowance for impairment

ETHB

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate of incurred and expected losses in its receivables. The main
components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loan loss allowance,
established for Companies of homogeneous assets in respect of losses that have been incurred and expected to incurred but have not been identified on

receivables subject to assessment for impairment.

Expected (reversal) / loss

4.4.3 Credit concentrations

JUNE 30,2023
ETB

JUNE 30,2022
ETB

The Company monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector, location and purpose. An analysis of concentrations of credit risk at JUNE 30,2023,
JUNE 30,2022 and JUNE 30,2021, The Company concentrates all its financial assets in Ethiopia.

JUNE 30,2023

Cash and balances with banks

JUNE 30,2022

Cash and balances with banks

JUNE 30,2021

Cash and balances with banks

Public Private Total
ETB ETB ETB

- 32,985,743 32,985,743

- 32,985,743 32,985,743

- 38,725,626 38,725,626

- 38, /25,020 38,125,020

- 38,144,399 38,144,399

- 38,144,399 38,144,399
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4.4

4.4.2

45

4.6
4.6.

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit quality analysis(continued)
Capital management

The Company maintains an efficient capital structure of equity shareholders™ funds, consistent with the Company’s risk profile and the regulatory and
market requirements of its business.

The Company’s objectives in managing its capital are :

- to match the profile of its assets and liabilities, taking account of the risks inherent in the business;

« to maintain financial strength to support new business growth:

+ 1o satisfy the requirements of its policyholders, regulators and rating agencies:

« to retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to a range of capital markets;

« to allocate capital efficiently to support growth;

+ to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders: and

+ to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk.

An important aspect of the Company’s overall capital management process is the setting of target risk-adjusted rate of return which is aligned to
performance objectives and ensures that the Company is focused on the creation of value for shareholders.

IFRS 13 requires an entity to classify measured or disclosed fair values according to a hierarchy that reflects the significance of observable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, which
comprises of three levels as described below, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Valuation models

IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable.
Observable input reflect market data obtained from independent sources: unobservable inputs reflect the Company's market assumptions.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

e Level 1 Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.c. derived from prices) This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments:
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active, or other valuation technique in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

[n conclusion, this category is for valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). This category includes all assets and
liabilities for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable date and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
asset or liability's valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.
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4.6
4.6.

4.6.3

4.0.4

4.0.4

4.7

Financial risk management (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Valuation models (Continued)

Financial assets
Cash and balances with banks
Trade receivables

Other receivables excluding prepayments

Total

Financial liabilities
Trade pavables
Other liabilities

Total

Fair value methods and assumptions

JUNE 30,2023 JUNE 30,2022 JUNE 30,2021

CatTyIng Fair value Carrying Fair value Cuirsing Fair value

amount amount amount
ETB ETB ETB ETB ETB ETB
32,985,743 32,985,743 38,725,626 38,725,626 38,144,399 38,144,399
51,795 51,795 995,173 995,173 1,614,792 1,614,792
194213 194.213 108,249 108,249 1,151,300 1,151,300
33,231,751 33.231,751 39,829,049 39,829,049 40,910,491 40,910,491
958,682 958,682 635,767 635,767 854,648 854,648
3,573,223 3,573,223 716,297 716,297 463,183 463,183
4,531,905 4,531,905 1,352,064 1,352,064 1,317,831 1,317,831

Loans and receivables including trade receivables are carried at cost net of provision for impairment. The estimated fair value represents the discounted
amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs — Level 3

The Company has no financial asset measured at fair value on subsequent recognition.

Transfers between the fair value hierarchy categories

During the three reporting periods covered by these annual financial statements, there were no movements between levels as a result of significant

inputs to the fair valuation process becoming observable or unobservable.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

There are no offsetting arrangements. Financial assets and liabilities are settled and disclosed on a gross basis.
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7.1

Revenue

IF'ood Service Income
Beverage Income
Rental Income
Cafteria Income

HOTEL SERVICE INCOME- For Managers

Cost of sales
Hotel Service cost-Food

Hotel Service cost -Beverage & others

I'ravel and Perdiem

Other income

Parking

Divedend income

Tax Retrun

Others

Gain in Disposal of Fixed asset
Interest Income

Total other income

Foreign Exchange Gain

Realized
Unrealized

Finance costs

interest on loan

28

30 June

30 June 2023 2022
ETB ETB
25,834,397 15,080,339
4,586,194 3,427,191
5,163,149 4,350,117
1,624,569 590,893
37,208,310 23,448,541
10,508.458 7,402,713
2,753,348 1,836,998
13,261,806 9,239,711
372,355 07,907
1,654,335 999 423
1,908,124 2,356,606
3,934,815 3,453,937




9 General and administration expenses 30 June 2023 2022
ETB ETB

Advertisement Expense 42,848 26,496
Bank Service Charge 6,627 58,067
Depreciation Expense-General A 10,339,548 10,350,639
Annual leave Expense 777,828 293,739
Severance expense 820,593 31,334
Expected Credit loss 1,326 -
I“uel and Lubricant Expenses 667.211 113,942
Insurance Expenses 197,065 119,842
Donation Expense 329,258 50,000
Supplies Expenses 387,646 158,947
Board of Directors fee 192,000 203,000
Heat & Electricity Expense 323,357 197,750
Miscellancous Expenses-General 947.018 796,171
Interest Expense 95.406 117.830
Penalty and Fines Expenses 57,178 2,468
Professional and Membership Fees-General 301,172 44,539
license & Registration fee 204 4,203
Repair and Maintenance Expenses 1.085.006 1,254,734
Commision Expense 1,870 2,259
Entertainment expense 13,465 22,000
Salary and Benefit Expenses 15,188,899 9,856,647
Telephone. Internet & other subscriptions 71,835 45,701
Travel & Perdiem Expenses - 1,000
31,847,360 23,751,311

10 Income and deferred tax

10.1 Current income tax

Current taxation based on taxable profit (note 10.2) 1,774,324 404,330
Deferred income tax charge(credit) to profit or loss (note 10.4) (3,538,423) | (2,955,745)
Total charge to profit or loss (1,764,099) | (2.551.415)
Tux charge (credit) on other comprehensive income - =
Total tax in statement of comprehensive income (1,764.099) | (2.551.415)
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LASTATENMENTS
ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
10 Income and deferred tax (continued )
10,2 Current taxation based on taxable profit
The tax on the Company’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
statutory income lax rate as follows:

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
ETB ETB
Profil before tax (3,966.042) (6.088,544)
Non-deductible expenses
Depreciation per accounting policy 10,025,576 10,031,536
Amortization per accounting policy - -
Interest income (1,908,124) 12,356,600)
Ponation Expense (329.258) (30,000)
Pividend mcome ( Taxed) - -
Severance Expense _ 820,593 31,334
Acerued annual leave expense ' . 777,828 293,739
Lxpected Credit Loss 1,326 -
Non taxable Gain on disposal of PPE - -
Tux refund - -
Petalty 57,178 2,468
5,479,077 1,863,927
Liess:
Unrealized foreign exchange gain #
[De-recognized expense 1.676,767 319,100

Loss Carry forward-2016 =
Loss Carry forward-2017 =
Capital Allowance (Depreciation per tax law) (1,241,431) (835.261)
Capital Allowance (amortization of deferred expenditure per tax law) - -

Tuxable income 5914413 1.347.766
Current Tax Expense (30%) 1,774,324 404.330
10,3 Current income tax liability

Salance at the beginning ol the year 393,588 -
Churge for the year (note 11.2) 1,774,324 404,330
Advance profit tax paid i ' (75.014.09) (10,742)
Payment during the year (393,588)

Bualance at the end of the year 1,699,310 393,588

14 Delerred income tax
Delerred taxation is caleulated on all temporary differences using the enacted principal tax rate of 30%. The
lemporary difference is a result of difference in tax base which raised from revaluation of PPEs and dilference m tax
rales of depreciation of property plant and equipment and difference in accounting for pre-operational expenditure
and post-employment benefit obligation for financial reporting and tax purpose.

30 JUNE 2023 30 JUNE 2022 30 JUNE 2021

ETB ETB ETHh
10.4.1 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Carrving amount of PPE (Note 11) 138,770,371 144,091,606 148,961,683
[Less: Tax written-down value (15.643.167) (12.174.237) (7,842.022)
Total temporary difference 123,127,204 131,917,369 141,119,661
Attributable to deemed cost exercise (141.119,661) (141.119.661) (141, 119.661)
Attributable to other differences recognized in Profit or Loss {17.992.457) (9,202,292)
LICICITEd 1aN ALIDUIADIE 1O deemed cost
exercise - 42,335,898 . 42,335 898 42335898
[+fTeet of current vear excess depreciation 2 - 2
2.335.898 42,335,898 42,335,898
Adtributable to other differences recognized in Profit or Loss (5.397.737) (2.760,688) =
Tl Deferred Tax Liabi |ll§r1'ﬁ§:\'cllwl} BE{T;:“‘\\ 36,938,161 39,575,211 42,335,898
s i e
‘:i""q‘ e Pjrdee, .;'('---\
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10.4.2

10.4.3

10.4.4

10.4.5

10.4.6

147

10.4.8

VTEMENTS

13 30 JUNE 2023

INANCLAL ST

Right of Use Land-Owner oceupied

30 JUNE 2023

30JUNE 2022

30 JUNE 2021

Carrving amount of ROU-land (Note 12)
ux written-down value (Annex 1)

Less,

Towl temporary difference
Attributable to deemed cost exercise

Attributable to other differences recognized in Profit or Loss
Total Deferred Tax Liability (asset) onROU Land-Leasehold

Investment Property

Carrving amount of ROU Building (Note 12)
Less: Tax written-down.value

Total temporary Difference

Total Deferred Tax Liability (asset) on ROU Building

Attributable to deemed cost exercise

Trade Receivable and Related Party Receivable (Expected Credit Loss)

Careving smount Trade receivable
Careying amount Related party
Pesss Tax Base Trade Receivable

Tax Base Related party

Deductible Temporary Difference

ETB ETB ETB
1304.774.673  1.304.774.673  1.304,774.673
1304774673 1.304.774.673 1.304,774.673

5,557,205 5,876,306 6.195.408

5.557.205 5,876,306 6195 408

1667163 762,893 838,622

3336785

51,795 995,173 1.614.792

(53.120) (995.173) (1,614,792)
(1,326) - -

Deterred Tax Liability (asset) on ECL

The deferred tax asset on the trade receivable was not recognized as the probability of realization in the near future

is remote,
Termination benefit obligation:
Curyving amount

Less: Tax Base

Towl Temporary Difterence

Total Deferred Tax Liability (asset) on PPE

Lease Obligation

Cirrying amount
Less: Tax Base

Deduetible Temporary Difference

Pretorred Tax Liability (asset) on LO

Arade and Other Payables
Carrying amount
Less: Tax Base

Deductible Temporary Difference

Delerred Tax Liability (asset) on TOD

Deferved Lxpenditure

Carrying amount
less: Tax Base

liming dillerence

Deterred Tax Liability (asset) on Derecognized Deferred

2.878.517 2,057,924 2.026.590
2.878.517 2.057.924 2,026.590
(B63.555) (617,377) (607,977)
6.098,916 2,046,011 1.724.963
(3,864,348) (1.676.328) (1.649.019)
2,234,568 369,684 75944
(670.370) (110,905) (22.783)
18,056 24,074 30,002
18.056 24,074 30,092
5417 7.222 9,028

l'otal Deferred Tax Liability (asset)

The analysis of Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

' be recovered after more than 12 months
To be recovered within 12 months

e
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10.4.9 The movement in deferred income tax assets (liabilities) and deferred income

10.5

loss. i equity and other comprehensive income are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities/(assets):

Reserve for Excess Deemed Cost over

‘Carrying Value

WINET UMING LITTErences on Property. Fint
and Equipment

Trade and Other Receivable

ROU Land- Leasehold

investment Property

Lease Obligation-Right ol use Land

PPost Employment Benefit Obligation
Trade and Other Payables

Deferred Expenditure

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets)

Deferrved Income Tax Liabilities/(Assets):

IKESEIVE T0F XCess Leemed L oSt over
Carrying Value

Other timing DifTerences on Property. Plant
ROU Land

mvestment 'roperty

Lease Ubhigation-Kight ol use Land

Trade Receivable

Post Emplovment Benefit Obligation
Trade and Other Payables

Deferred Expenditure

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets)

Investment -Financial instrument

Balance brought forward
Current Period Change( Change in FV)
ADDITIONAL INVESTMENT

Equity instrument

tax chnrgcf(c“rcl('!-it) in prnﬁtnr

Credit/ Credit/
At 30 June (charge) to (charge) to ’At 30 June
2022 nrofir or Inss ennity 2023
ETB ETB ETB ETB
42,335,898 - - 42,335,898
L
(2.760.688) (2,637,049) - (5,397,737
1,762,892 (95.730) - 1,667,162
(617.377) (246,178) - (B63.555)
(110,905) (539.463) - (670,370)
7,222 - 7,222
40,617,042 (3,538,423) - 37,078,619
Credit/ Credit/

At 30 June

At 30 June

W ana  NIRY en
ETB ETB ETB ETB
42,335 898 - - 42,335,898
(2.760,688) - (2,760,688)
1838022 {Y3,/30) 1,702,892
(607.977) (9,400) - (617.377)
(22.783) (88,122) - (110.905)
9.028 (1,805) - 7.222
43,572,788 (2.955,745) - 40,617,042
31 DEC 2020 31 DEC 2019 2018
ETB ETB ETB
1,000,000.00 1.000,000.00  ####ssidais
1000000 1.000,000 LO00,000
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13

Right of Use Asset (ROUA)

Cuost

Asat JUNE 30,2021
Additions
Asat JUNE 30,2022

As at JUNE 30,2022
Additions
Asat JUNE 30,2023

Accumulated Amortization

Asat JUNE 30.2021
Charge for the year
Asat JUNE 30.2022

As at JUNE 30,2022
Charge lor the year

As at JUNE 30,2023
Nei book value

As ul JUNE 30,2021
As at JUNE 30,2022
As at JUNE 30,2023

Inventories

Stock items -Beverages
Stock items -Food

Stationary
Bottles & Contamers
Others

Gross wmonit

Allowance or write-down ol inventory

Lioods m transit

Lease hold Asset

LTB

1.304,774.673

[.304,774,673

Total
ETB

1.304,774.673

1,304,774,673

1.304,774,673

1.304.774,673

1,.304,774,673

1.304,774,674

= 1
1.304,774,673  1,304,774,673
1,304,774,673  1,304,774,673
1.304,774,673  1,304,774,673

30 June 2023] 30 June 2022| 30 June 2021
I'TB ETR ETB

148,742 78,111 73,647
521,276 670,078 290,928
153,008 171,964 116,775
111,674 ¥4, 9534 76,789
224,593 195.5 lEr_ 16,674
1.158,298 1,200,602 674 813
1.158.298 1.200.602 674.813
1,158,298 1,200,602 674,813
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30 June 2023) 30 June 2022{| 30 .June 2021

o ETB ETB ETB
14 Trade receivables

Trade receivable 53.120 995.173 1.614.792

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (1.326) - %

51,795 995,173 1,614,792

The average credit period on rendering of services is 30 days. No interest is charged on trade

receivables, The Company has recognized an allowance for doubtful debts based on the

expected credit loss. In measuring the expected credit losses, the trade receivable have been

assessed on a collective basis as thev possess shared credit risk characteristics. They have been
142 The movements in iparment allowance for trade recervable 15 analvzed below.

Ialance at the begimning ol year 5

Imparment loss recognized on recevables | W& _ =

[mpanrment 1oss reversed "

Balance at end of the year 1.326 - -
15 Other receivables

Chher financial Assets

Sundry Debtors 154.768
Guest Account - R6T.278
Purchase Advance and Prepayments = - 160
Stall Debtor 194,213 108,249 129,255

194213 108,249 1,151,461

Other non - financiul Assets
Withholding tax receivable 75.014 10,742 =
Value added tax receivable - 3

-75.014 -10,742
(rross amonnd 194,213 108,249 1,151,460
Collective impairment - - -
194,213 108.249 1,151,460

Muaturity analysis
Current 194213 108,249 1,151 460
Non- current

194,213 108,249 1,151,460

10 Cash and bank balances
Cash on hand 56.841 53.926 38 144,399
Cash at bank 32.028.602 38.671.700 -

16A  Bank Overdrall . .
32,985,743 38,725,626 38,144,399
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ATEMENTS

MEILNE LS

Paid Up capital

The Company has authorized and fully paid capital as follows. The shares have equal voting rights and shares

are equal 10 the distribution of profit.

Authorized:
REGISTERD CAPITAL
Lssued and fully paid:
REGISTERD CAPITAL

Retained carnings

Al the beginning of the year
Subtotal

Transter to Paid up capital

Profit for the year

Prior year adjustment

profit tux piad to ERCA

Transter to Legal Reserve (Note 20)

Al the end of the year

Prior Year Adjustinent
Errors

30 June 2023 | 30 June 2022 | 30 June 2021
ETB ETB ETB
1,177,283 1,177,283 1,177,283
1,177.283 1,177,283 1,177,283
41,544,003 45,079,218 .
45079218 =
(2,201.943) (3.537,128.39) #
(834.478) 5 -
(11,693,856) - o
26,813,727 41,544,003 45,079,218

(858,399.65)
25,922.00

(834477.65)

The company made prior year adjustment of 858.399 65 birr for the year ended June 30,2023 and dedeuted
torm the retained camigs account, this cost is incurred for construction of houses as donation for poor citizens
i1 the subeity and 23,922 birr of roll over adjustment is an audit error of 13,125 birr commited since 2021 and

Reserve for excess deemed cost over carrying value

Revalued amount at date of transition PPE
Revalued amount at date of transition /P

Carrying value at date of transition PPE
[Revaluation surplus at date of transition

Deferred Tax on Revaluation

[tevalued amount at date of transition ROU LAND

Transfer Lo retained earnings in respect of excess
depreciation of the revalued assets net of deferred
Reserve lor excess deemed cost over carrying value

30 June 2023 | 30 June 2022 | 30 June 2021
ETB ETHB ETB

138,770,371 144,091,606 148,961,683
6,195 408 6,195,408 6,195 408
144,965,779 150,287,013 155,157,091
(15.643,167)  (12,174.237) (7.842.022)
144.965.779 138,112,776 147.315.069
(43,489,734 (41.433,833)|  (44,194.521)
1,304,774,673|  1.304.774.673) 1,304,774.673
L406.250,718 1.401,453.616| 1,407,895.221
1,644,503 6,441,605 =
1,407,895,221| 1,407,895.221| 1,407,895,221

[Yeemed cost in excess of carrying value account is a surplus/gain arising from revaluation of PPEs & ROU
Assets us at the transition date ( considered as deemed cost for the first ime adoption of IFRS) and non-
distributable to shareholders in the form of dividend and non-taxable income, rather kept under equity section,

Legal reserve

lalance at the beginning of the vear
Vransfer from retained earnings

At the end of the year

Lease Obligation

Halanee at beginning of year
Addition during the year
Settiement made during the year

Balanee at the end of the year

30 June 2023
ETB

30 June 2022
ETB

30 June 2021
ETB

3G

”
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Lease Ubhigation- Current Portion

leuse obligation -current portion
lease obligation - non current portion
Balance at the end of the year

Provision tor tence construction
Balanee at beginning of vear

Addition during the year
Settlement made during the year

Balance at the end of the vear

Retirement benefit obligation

Defined beneflits liabilities:
— Severance benefit plan (note 23.1)

Liability in the statement of financial position

Income statement charge included in personnel

- Severance benefit plan (note 23.1)

Total defined benefit expenses

30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2021

E1B ETB/ EIB!

1041, 164 1.041.164 -

(190.461) * =

850703 LO41.164) 1041164

30 June 2023 3 Tune 2022 J0 June 2021
ETB ETB ETB

2878517 2,057,924 2,026,590

2.878.517 2,057,924 2,026,590
820,593 31,334 2026589 96
§20.593 31,334 2.026,589,96
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Retirement benefit obligation

Severance benefit plan

The severance benefit plan is an unfunded defined benefit scheme. The Company does not maintain any assets
for the schemes but ensures that it has sufficient funds for the obligations as they crystallize.

The severance benefits are based on the statutory severance benefit as set out in Labor Proclamation No.
3772003, as amended by the Labor (Amendment) Proclamation No. 494/2006. Employees who have served the
Company for 5 years and above and are below the retirement age (i.e. has not met the requirement to access the
pension fund) are entitled for the benefit. The final pay-out is determined by reference 1o final monthly salary and
number of vears in service computed as one month salary of the first year in employment plus one-third of
monthly salary lor subsequent years to a maximum of twelve months salary.

The principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligations

30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2021

ETB ETB ETB
Discount rate (p.a) 20.00% 19.00% 18.00%
Long term salary mereases (p.a) 12.0% 12.00% 12.00%

Discount raie

In Ethiopia. there is no liquid market for bonds including government bonds of Ethiopia. Based on this we have
assumed a long-term rate of discount based on the prevailing commercial hanks lending rate as advised by the
Association of Ethiopian Insurers

The Company therefore opted to use a discount rate of (JUNE 30.2023: 20% JUNE 30.2022: 19%.JUNE 30,2021
| 8% based on a rate that brings the real rate to an reasonable level.

Long term salary increases

The salary merease assumption rate of 12% p.a has been applied

Risk exposure

Through its post-employment benefit schemes. the Company is exposed to a nisk. The most significant is detailed

Liguidity risk
The defined liabilities are unfunded and as a result. there is a risk ol the Company not having the required cash
flow to fund future defined benefit obligations as they fall due

Lewel Risk

The benefits are defined as per the Labor Proclamation. Amendments to the Labor Proclamation could change
these benetits and matenally change the costs of the Company.

Life Expeciancy

Severance Henents 1§ payable where an employee s contriet of employment is termnated by the imitation of the
employer against the provision of Law. The actual cost o the Company of the benefits is therefore subject to the
demographic movements of employees.

30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
ETB ETB ETB

Trade payvables
Trade pavables 958,682 635,767 854,648
YSK,O8L 635,767 854,648

The average eredit period on purchases of certain goods from suppliers is 2 months. No interest is charged on the
trade payables. The Company has financial risk management policies in place lo ensure that all payables are paid
within the pre-agreed credit terms

a8
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Other liabilities

Other finaiecial liabilities
Accruals

Deferred Income

Sundry Payables

Other non - financial liabilities

Value added tax payahle
Payroll Deductions

Pension & Provident Payahle
Withhalding tax pavable
Cash Indmentiy

30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
ETB ETB ETB
3,331,653 420,761 150,994
- - (334.671)

241,570 295,535 646,860

ik felek 716,297 463,183
1,095,781 372,023 84,603
291.354 189,524 319,964
161,487 110,417 -
18.389 21,984 -

- ) - 2,563
1,567,011 693 948 407,132
ENELEAEY 1,410,245 870,315
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A/

30 June 2023 2022
Cash generated from operating activities ETB ETB
Profit before income tax (3.966,042) | (6,088.544)

Adjustments for:

Interest expenses on finance lease
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10,023,576 10,031,536
Amortization of nght-of-use-Land - .
Amaortization of right-of-use-Building 5

Annual leave Expense 777.828 293,739

Expected Credit loss 1,326 -
Retirement benefit obligation §20,593 31,334
Cash tlow belore working capital change 7,654,280 4,268,060

Changes in working capital:

Decrease (increase) i imventory {1,158.298) (525,789)
Decrease (increase) i trade recervables 042,053 619,619
Decrease (increase) in other receivables (B5.964) 1,043,211
Increase (decrease) in Trade pavables 322916 218,881
Increase (decrease) in other tax payahles (404,330}
Increase (deercase) in other labilities 3,729,989 (539,929)

1A 4,679,728

——————

Related party transactions

A number of wansactions were entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These
are disclosed as follows;

Key management compensation

Key management has been determined 1o be the members of Executive Management of the Company.
The compensation paid or pavable to key management is shown below.

30 June 30 June
2023 30 June 2022 2021
ETR ETB ETB

Salaries and other short-term employee benelits * i Z
Post-employment benefits - - -
Severance benefit plan * =

Contingent liabilities
Claims and litigation
The Company is subjected to litigation arising in the normal course of business. The Management is of
the opinion that the pending litigation as at the reporting date will not have a material effect on the
(inancial position or profits of the Company. At the year end the Compuny is not involved in any cases .

2023 30 June 2022 2021

ETB ETB ETB
Operating lease

2023 30 June 2022 2021

ETB ETB ETB

The Company has no Finance lease liability . All lease are short term which is consedred as operating

Tessaan

40
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Events after reporting period

2]
In the opinion of the Management, there were no significant post bulance sheet events which could have a material effect on the state of affairs of the
Company as at JUNE 30,2023 and on the profit for the year ended on that date, which have not been adequately provided for or disclosed.

These financial statements. for the year ended JUNE 30,2023, are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

For periods up to and mcluding the vear ended JUNE 30,2022, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with its accounting
framework. Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with IFRS applicable for periods ending on or after JUNE
30,2023 together with the comparative period data as at and for the vear ended JUNE 30,2022, as described in the summary of significant accounting
policies

In preparing these financial statements. the Company’s opening statement of financial position was prepared as at JUNE 30,2021, the Company’s date
of transition 10 1FRS. This note explains the principal adjustiments made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared under the
previous framework, including the statement of financial position as at JUNE 30,2021 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended JUNE

30,2022

In preparing its opening IFRS statement of financial position. the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared
i accordance with Company's previous accounting framework and the Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960, An explanation of how the transition from
previous framework to IFRS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and
the notes that accompany the tables.

Optional exemptions apnlied
The Company applied the following exemptions on its transition to [FRS

Deemed cost. Property, plant and equipment and investment properties were carried in the statement of financial position prepared in accordance with
previous framework using histerical cost. The Company has revalued all its property, plant and equipment and investment property and elected to
regard those fair values as deemed cost at the wansition o IFRS, g

Leases The Company is required to determine whether an arrangement contains a lease based on the facts and circumstances existing on JUNE
302021 Anv contracts that exist would result in a classification based on the facts and circumstances that exist at transition date.

Fair value measarement of finangial nstruments at initial recognition; The application of “day 17 gain or loss recognition in IFRS 9 for financial
instruments recorded at (i value may be burdensome. As a result, an exemption 15 offered by IFRS | for financial instruments carried at fair value for
which there 15 no active market

The Company has decided to apply the exemption and would apply the “day 17 gain or loss recognition requirements in IFRS 9 prospectively to
transactions entered into alter the transition date (JUNE 30,2021},

Excentions anolicd

The Company applied the following mandatory exception from retrospective application:

Lstimates exception

Estimates under [FRS at January 1, 2018 are consistent with estimates made for the same date under its previous accounting framework, unless there 1s

evidence that those estimates were in error,

The estimates used by management in preparing the transition date statement of financial position are consistent with those used under previous
framewark for the same date.

4
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First-time adoption of IFRS Tor the Company (continued)

Reconciliation of Statement of total comprehensive income for the vear ended 30 JUNE 2022
Previous framework Reclassification  Remeasurement IFRS
Notes E'TB ETB ETB ETB
Revenue a) 19,098 423 4,350,118 23,448,541
19,098,423 4,350,118 - 23,448,541
LExpenses - -
Operating Costs b) (9.239.711) = (9239.711)
Gross Profit 9,858,712 4,350,118 14,208,829
Other income ¢ 7.804.054 (4.350.118) 3.453.936
Sorexdine il 17,662,766 - 17,662,766
General and administrative expenses d) {13,910.860) - (9,722,619) (23.633,479)
Finance income (cost). net e} - - -
others - o -
Prolit before income tax 3,751,906 - (9,722,619) (5,970,712)
Income Lax expanse n {419,330) - 2,955,745 2,536,415
PProfit for the year 3,332,576 - (6,766,874) (3,434,2906)
Other comprehensive income - = < i
Total Comprehensive income 3,332,576 5 (6.766,874) (3.434,296)
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First-time adoption of 1FRS for the Company (continued)

Reconciliation of equity as at 30 JUNE 2022

ASSETS

Cash and bank balances

Trade receivahles

Other receivables

lnventories

Properts, plant and — equipment
Right of use land

Deferred Expenditure
Investiment property

Investiment

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Trade labilites

Other labilities

Provsion for Fence for Construction
Current income tax labilities
Deferred tax linbility

Retirement benelit ahligation

Total liabilities

EQUITY
Paid Up capital
Accomulated Profit or Loss

Deemed cost in excess of carrying amount

Total equity and liabilities

Nates

Previous framework Reclassification  Remeasurement IFRS
ETB ETB LETB ETB
38725626 - - 38,725,626
1} 4,328.667 (3,333.494) 995,173
m) . 108,249 - 108.249
1,200,602 - - 1,200,602
g) 12,174.237 - 131917369 144.091.6006
) - 1.304,774,673 1,304,774.673
i 24.074 . (24,074) .
- 5.876.306 5.876.306
1,000,000 100, 000
57,453,206 (3,225,245) 1.442,544,274 1,496,772,236
r) 4,903 481 (3,974,320) 928,661
t) 747,667 369,084 1,117,351
1041164 1,041,164
HUE SHE - 408,588
o - - 4617042 400617042
Q) - - 2,057,924 2,057,924
6,353,234 (3,227,153) 43,044,649 46,170,730

(1.908)
1,177,283 - - 1,177,283
nj 49 922 689 (8,353,685) 41,5249 004
0 1,407,895.221 1,407,895 221
51,099,972 - 1,399,501,330 145,601,508
57,453,200 (3,227,153.00) 1,442,546,186 1.496,772,238
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First-time adoption of IFRS for the Company (continued)

Reconciliation of equity as at 30 JUNE 2021

Notes
ASSETS
Cash and bank balances
Trade and Other receivables i}
Other receivables m)

Inventories

Property, plunt and eguipmient g)
Right of use building

Right of use land

Deferred Expenditure k)
Investment - bancd n
[nvestment - property

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Trade liabilities r}
Other liabalities 1
Current income tax liabilities

other tax lablity

Provsion tor fence Construction ¥
Deferred tax hability
Retirement benefit obligation )

Total liahilities

EQUITY

Paud up capial

Retained carnings n)

Dreemed Cost in exeess of CV

Legnl reserve

Total equity and liabilities

Previous framework Reclassification  Remeasurement IFRS
ETR ETB ETB ETB
38,144,399 - - 38,144,399
1,614,792 - - 1.614.792
1,151,460 - - 1,151,460
674,813 s = 674,813
7.842,022 - 141,119,661 148,961,683
- - 1,304,774.673 1,304,774,673

30,092 - (30,092) ]

| 000,000 1,000,000

- - 6,143,408 O, 150 4u8
50,457,578 - 1,452,059,650 1,502,517,228
854,048 - 854 648
794,370 - 75.944 870,315
1.041,164 - 1.041,164
- 43,572,788 43572788

- 2,026,590 2.026,590
2,690,182 - 45,675,322 48,365,508
Ll ff .28 = * I 177 283

46,574,878

(1,510,895)
1,407.895.221

43,079,218
1. 407,895,221

47,752,161

1,406,384,325

1, 454,151,722

50,442,344

1,452,059,647

1,502,517,227
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First-time adoption of IFRS for the Company (continued)

Notes (o the reconeiliation of equity and profit

Revenue

Amount reported under previous framework

Amount reported under IFRS

Under previous Tramewark income from auxiliary activities were reported as revenue. Under IFRS it these income are presented as other income.

Operating costs

Amoun ri.}mmd under previous framework
Reclassi
Reclassilication to Administrative Expenses

Remeasurement and Reclassifications

Depreciation on PI'E
Amortization under IFRS
Depreciation as per the previous framework

Amount reported under IFRS
Under previous framework

Other income

Amount reported under previous framework

Reclassification

asstlicution from revenue

Remeasurement and Reclassifications (ro Retained earnings
Relcassiteation rom R.E

amaunt reported as per the previous framework

Amaount reported under IFRS

Linder previous framework income from auxiliary activities were reperted as revenue. Under IFRS it these income are presented as other income

General & Administration expenses

Amount reported under previous framework

Reclassification to adminstrative exp
other o admin
Reclassitication from operating cost

Remeasurement

Depreciation on property plant and equipment
Amortization expense

Depreciation as per the previous framework
others

Dilfered Expenditure

Amount reported nnder IFRS &

Reclassification ol bank charges to finance cost.

Under previous framewaork, selling and distribution expense was presented as part of administration expense. under IFRS, it is presented separately as

selling and distribution expense

Under the previous frumework, useful life was assigned to asset eategories based on the relevant fax rate. Under IFRS useful life has been determined

by external valuation expert bused on how the assets are used lor business,

Relates 1o nceruals ol severanee benelit expenses. Under previous framework, there was no estimate or accrual of severance pay obligation with only
actual ecash pavment made to emplovees during the vear recognized as an expense. Under [FRS, the Company is required o sta.rnIHn Lhu hn,st estimate
of cash outflows that will urise in respect of the benefit earned by emplovees at each reporting period.

1,649,018

(104901 5) 30 June 2022
_ 1B
19,098 423

4,350,117
23,448,540

30 June 2022
ETB

9.239.711

9,239,711

ETB
7,804,054

(4,350,117)

3,453,937

30 June 2021
ETB

13,910,860

10,350,639

(1,111,065)

U I393573

23,150,433
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First-time adoption of 1FRS for the Company (continned)
Notes to the reconciliation of equity and profit (Continued)

General & Administration expenses (Continued)

Under previous framework, leasehold land was recognized as a finance lease. Under IFRSIS | the Company recognizes the leasehold Jand as an

operating lease. The annual lease payvment is charged to administrative expenses

Under previous framework, there was no receivable smpairment allowance. Under [FRS 9 the Company is required to determine expected eredit loss on

recetvables al cach reporting period,
Finance cost

Amount reported under previous framework
Reclusstlication o adminstrative exp

Remeasurement
Interest expense recognized on Right of Land

Amount veported under 1FRS

JUNE 30 2021
ETB

Under previous framework, leased land and associated lease obligation were not reported. Under IFRS, the recognition of the leased obligation resulted

in additional fnance charges presented as finance cost,

Tax Charpes

Amount reported under previous framework

Remeasurement

Deferred tax expense from temporary differences

Amount reported under [FRS

—JUNE 302021
(419.330)

2,955,745
2,536,415

It relates to deferred tax expenses resulting from temporary taxable and deductible differences recognized under IFRS. Under the previous [ramework,

only current tax expenses were reported as tax charges.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Amount reported under previous framewaork
reclissiication

fised Asset i Transit

Remeasurement

Depreciation on property plant and equipment
Depreciation as per the previous framework
dercognized

Deemed cost remeasurement

Raollover adjustment

Amount reported under ITRS

JUNE 30,2022 | JUNE 30,2021
ETB ETB
12,174,237 7,842,022
(10,025.576) :
835,261 .
(11,978) 141,119.661
141,119,661 .
131,917.369 141.119.661
144,091,606 148,961,683

Undler previous framework, depreciated on property, plant and equipment was compuled using rutes that did not depict how the assets were being used,
Under 1FRS, the useful life estimates and value of those assets have been revised and revalued respectively by the entity valuation expert, The value
determined based on entity valuation expert are considered as deemed cost. The remeasurement is as a result of deemed costs.

146
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Amount reported under IFRS

First-time adoption of IFRS for the Company (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation ol equity and profit (continued)
JUNE 30,2022 JUNE 30,2021
ETB ETB
Right of use land
Amount reported under previous lramework S )
] 1304774673

Remeasurement

Recognition of Right of use land
Amortization of ROU Land
Reclassifcatio

From deterred expenditure
Rollover adjustment

1.304.774,673

1,304,774 673

1,304,774,673

Amount reported under IFRS

1,304,774,673

1,304,774,673

Under previous tramework, lease hold land was not recognized in the company’s books. Under IFRS (IFRS 16), the Company recogl

landl as an right of use asset.

nizes the leasehold

JUNE 30,2022 JUNE 30,2021
ETB ETB

Deferved Expenditure
Amount reported under previous framework 24,074 30,092

1

(1,206,616}

Remeasureiment

Dee-recoznition of deferred expenditure

(1,057.235)

(352,927)

1 (1.206,616)

(1,410,162)

(1.182.542)

(1,380,070}

Under previous framework, delerred expenditure related o expenditure made on building in exchange for its use has been recognized. Under IFRS, as

the arrangement qualities as o lease, the deferred expenditure 15 derecognized and a right to use building is recognized in its place

JUNE 30,2022
LT1

JUNE 30,2021
ETB

Right of use building

Amount reported under previous framework

reclassitication
Reclassification torm PPE
Rechissihicabion o Raight ol use Bullding

Remedsyrement

Remepsutement of building measured as PPE
Dierecognition of mnortization expense of deferred expenditure -
Derecognition ol deprecation expense of building measured at PPE -
Amortization of ROU Building
Rollover adjustment

Amount reported under IFRS

Under previous Iramework, deferred expenditure related to expenditure made on building in exchange for its use has been recognized, Under IFRS, os

the arrangement qualifies as a lease, the deferred expenditure is derecognized and a right to use building is recognized in its place.

Deferred tax asset

JUNE 30,2022

ETB

JUNE 30,2021
ETB

Amount reported under previous framewerk

Remeasurement
iion of deferred tax
Preterred tax asset utilized

Rollover adjustment

Amouit reported under [FRS

Under the previous framework, the company was determining deferred tax asset or Labilities, Under IFRS, the company recognized deferred tax asset

related to tax credils orgimating from loss carry forward of the previous two fiscal periods (as allowed by the Ethli)}LI(]n‘m'x reguffation) g
v o -
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First-time adoption of IFRS for the Company (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of equity and profit (continued)

JUNE 30,2022 JUNE 30,2021
ETB ETB
Trade receivables
Amount reported under previous framework 1,103,423 1.614,792
Reclassilication
Reclassification 1o other receivable (108,249)
(108,249) -
Remeasurement.
Derecopmzed Receivables credit loss * ?
Allowance for expected credil loss - -
Rollover adjustment - -
Y95,174 1,614,792

Amount reported under IFRS

Under previous framework. both wade and other receivables were presented together as trade and other receivables. Under IFRS, trade receivables are

presented separately

Under previous framework. related party receivable was recognized as a separate line item. Under IFRS the Company reclassified these receivables to

trade recemvables

Under previous framework, there was no receivable impairment allowance, Under IFRS 9 the Company is required to determine expected credit loss on
b P 3

receivables ot cuch reporting period

JUNE 30,2022

JUNE 30,2021

ETB ETH
Other Receivables
Amount reported under previous ramework - =
Reclassilicutions
Other receivables (note (L) ) 108,249 1,151,460
Amount reported under IFRS 108,249 1,151,460

Under the previous [ramework, other assets were presented as part of trade and other receivables. Under IFRS, other assets are classilied separately,

JUNE 30,2022 JUNE 30,2021
Retained earnings Notes ETB ETB
Retained carmings per previous framework 46,155,548 46,574,878

Reclassheatio

Reclassileation tw other gam

Chweners aecount

Remeasurenienty

{8.731.73%
(20460111

PPPE Deemed cost excess 2)
Recoemtion of acerual Annual Leave

Recognition of acerued Severance pay (31.334)
Deemed Cost in Exeess of Carrying Amount 4,722,453
De-recognized Deferred expenditure derecognized 1) -

Recopnition of Deferred tax liability 2955745

Rallover adjustment (1.495,659)

41.433.833
(75.944)
(2,026,590}
2,775.922
(30,092)
(43.572.788)

(4,626,545)

(1.495.659)

Retaining enrnings per 1FRS 41,529,003

45,079,219
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31 First-time adoption of IFRS Tor the Company (continued)

32d Notes to the reconcilintion of equity and profit (continued)

JUNE 30,2022 JUNE 30,2021

o) Retivement henelit obligation ETB ETE

Amount reported under previous framework - il
Remeasurement

iy Recognition ol severance pay obligation 31,334 2,026,390

Rollover adjusoments 2,026,589 -

2,057,924 2,026,590

Amount reported under 1FRS 2,057,924 2.026,590

D Under previous lramework, there was no estimate or accrual of severance pay obligation, Under IFRS, the Company is required to determine the best
estimate of cash outllows that will arise in respect of the benelit earned by employees at each reporting period, This accrual was determined using the

projected unit credit method in ling with the requirements of [AS 19

JUNE 30,2022 JUNE 30,2021
p) Deferved tax liabilities ETh ETB
Amount reported under previous framework % B
Remeasurement

= Recognition of delerred tax hability on right of use land - -
Recognition of deterred wax liability on right of use building (95,730) 1,858,622
Recognition of deferred tax liability on property, plant and equipment - 42,335 898
Recognition of deferred tax asset on deferred expenditure (1,805) 9,028
— Recognition of deferred 1ax asset other timing differences (2,760,688) -
Recognition of deferred tax asset on trade creditors (88.122) (22,783)
Recognition of deferred tax asset on severance pay obhigation (9,400) (607,977)

Recognition of deferred tax asset on Lease obligation =
- Kollover adjustments 43,572,788 -
40.617.042 43572788
Amount eeported under IFRS 40.617.042 43,572,788

> s ]
Addis Ababa

49

Under previous framework, there was no practice of determining and/or reporting deferred tax asset or liabilities, Under [FRS, in line with the
prescriptions laid out i IAS 12, temporary differences, both taxable and deductible were analyzed a deferred tax Lability is reported.
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First-time adoption of IFRS for the Company (continued)

324 Notes to the reconciliation of equity and profit (continued)

r)

t)

1]
]

Trade payahles

Amount reported under previous [ramework
Re-measurement

Reclassilication.
Reclassilication to other labilities
Reclassification 1o control Account

Amount reported under IFRS

JUNE 30,2022 JUNE 30,2021
ETB ETB
4,903,481 1,649,019
(3.974,820) (794,371
(3,974,820) (794.371)
Y2ZR,661 854,648

Under the previous framework, other liabilities were presented as part of trade and other payables and related party pavables were presented in the
statement of financial position as a separate line item, Under IFRS, other liabilities are classified separately and related party pavables are reclassified to

tracke payables

Under the previous framework, related party payables were presented as a separate line item, Under IFRS, they are presented as part of trade payables

owing to their nalure.

nher liabilities

Amuount reported under previous framework
Remeasurement

Recogmtion ol acerued leave payable
Recognition of litigation obligation

Rollover adjustment

Reclassification
Reclassification w other lighilities

Amount reported under IFRS

JUNE 30,2022 JUNE 30,2021
ETB ETB

293,739 75,944
75,944 -
360,684 73044

747 667 794 371
747.667 794371
1,117,351 870,315

Under previous framework, there was no estimate or accrual of leave pay. Under IFRS, the Company is required to determine the best estimate ol cash
outlloss that will arise i respect of the leave eamned by emplovees at each reporting period. In addition, under IFRS a litigution obligation is

recognized us per the requirements of IAS 37,

Under the previous framework, other liabilities were presented as part of trade and other pavables. Under IFRS, other liabilities are classified separately.
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